
	
 
 
 
The times indicated for each topic are approximate and subject to change. Generally, upon the completion of each 
agenda item, the Board will move to the next agenda item. However, the order of the agenda items is tentative and, 
when necessary to accommodate the public or the Board schedule, the order of the agenda is also subject to change. All 
documents are considered to be in draft form and for information only until final action is taken by the Board. If 
someone requires special accommodations, please contact the HPTE office 2 days prior to the meeting. 
	
11:30  Informal Discussion, Roll Call: CDOT Region 1-Large Maintenance Conference Room 

Discussion of matters relating to subsequent agenda items, upcoming projects, and administrative 
and budget matters. 
• Welcome new HPTE team member 

• I-25 North US36 to 120th (Segment II) Road Safety Audit Update (presented by Region 1 
Traffic) 
• I-70 Mountain Corridor Variable Speed Limit Study (presented by Region 1 Traffic)  

12:20  Board Break 

12:30  Board Reconvene, Roll Call: CDOT Region 1-Large Maintenance Conference Room 

12:35  Public Comment 

12:40  Director’s Report (David Spector) 

12:45  Legislative Update (Andy Karsian) 

12:50  Communications Update (Megan Castle) 

12:55  Major Projects Update (Nick Farber) 

1:00 Consent Agenda (The items listed below will be voted on a single motion without discussion to 
expedite the handling of routine matters. Any Board Member may remove an item from the 
consent agenda.)  

A. Resolution #260 February, 2018 Minutes 

1:05  Discuss and Act on Resolution #261 Adoption of Annual Fee for Service Intra Agency 
Agreement and Scope of Work for FY 2018-19 (Nick Farber) 

1:10 Discuss and Act on Resolution #262 Adoption of FY 2018-19 HPTE Budgets (Piper Frode) 

1:15  Adjourn 

 

	

	

Don Marostica, Chair  
Shannon Gifford, Vice-Chair  
Anastasia Khokhryakova  
Kathy Gilliland  
Thad Noll  
Rocky Scott 
	

High Performance Transportation Enterprise 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
CDOT, Region 1, 2000 South Holly Street 

Denver, Colorado 80222 
Wednesday, March 14, 2018 

	



Resolution HPTE #260 
Approving HPTE February 14, 2018 regular meeting minutes  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the February 14, 2018 meeting minutes 
attached hereto, are hereby approved by the High Performance 
Transportation Enterprise Board of Directors. 
 
Signed as of March 14, 2018 
 
 
 
_______________________________________      
Kari V. Grant  
Secretary, HPTE Board of Directors 
	



	

1	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Chair	Marostica	
called	the	meeting	
to	order	@11:32	am:	
	
Director’s	Agenda	
Overview	and	
Discussion:	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

MINUTES	OF	THE	REGULAR	MEETING	OF	THE	BOARD	OF	DIRECTORS	OF	THE	
HIGH	PERFORMANCE	TRANSPORTATION	ENTERPRISE	(HPTE)	
Held:	 Wednesday,	February	14th,	2018;	11:30	am	

4201	E.	Arkansas	Ave.,	CDOT	HQ	Auditorium,	Denver,	CO	80222	
	
The	regular	meeting	of	the	Board	of	Directors	of	the	HPTE	was	convened	in	accordance	with	applicable	
statutes	of	the	State	of	Colorado,	with	the	following	Directors	present:	
	
Kathy	Gilliland,	Chair	 	 	 			Shannon	Gifford																																		Rocky	Scott	
Don	Marostica,	Vice	Chair																																Anastasia	Khokhryakova	
																																																																																																																																												
	
HPTE	Board	Director	Noll	was	excused.		
	
	
	
HPTE	Director	David	Spector	noted	the	Agenda	today	is	brief,	and	asked	HPTE	Legislative	Liaison	Ron	
Papsdorf	to	give	an	informal	overview	of	legislative	activity.	Mr.	Papsdorf	said	it	has	been	a	quiet	session	
so	far	for	HPTE	matters,	and	that	there	is	little	talk	of	adverse	bills.	He	said	SB18-001	(Sen.	Baumgardner,	
Sen.	Cooke,	Sen.	Buck)	and	HB18-11	(Rep.	Leonard	and	Sen.	Neville)	both	dedicate	a	portion	of	sales	tax	
to	transportation,	but	a	bipartisan	solution	for	transportation	funding	solutions	may	not	come	forward.	
He	noted	that	a	ballot	initiative	may	be	the	only	course.	SB18-128	(Sen.	Gardner,	Rep.	Liston)	directs	
that	fees	must	be	voted	on	by	the	General	Assembly.	The	bill	applies	to	toll	rate	adjustments,	and	has	
implications	for	bonding.	Mr.	Papsdorf	anticipates	that	the	measure	will	not	be	approved.	SB-028	(Sen.	
Scott,	Rep.	Bridges)	has	been	introduced	regarding	front	license	plate	mounting	requirements.	The	
industry	has	flexibility	on	this	issue,	and	passage	of	the	bill	would	not	interfere	with	toll	collections.	It	is	
expected	to	pass.			
	
Director	Spector	announced	that	last	month	HPTE	Board	Director	Kathy	Gilliland	attended	the	National	
Conference	for	Public	Private	Partnerships	and	accepted	the	award	for	US	36	Express	Lanes	Service	and	
Operations.	Director	Gilliland	noted	the	award	is	shared	with	Plenary	Roads	Denver.	She	said	that	the	
central	focus	of	the	conference	was	on	the	growing	need	for	private	partnerships	in	the	face	of	shrinking	
federal	funding.	Director	Spector	noted	that	NCPPP	provided	staff	training	on	P3s	last	year.		
	
Team	HPTE	is	the	winner	of	the	2017	CDOT	Director’s	Cup,	Division	Category.		The	award	demonstrates	
HPTE’s	commitment	and	success	in	supporting	the	Healthy	Multi-	Modal	System	Peak	at	CDOT.	Director	
Spector	also	announced	that	Tony	Meneghetti	has	joined	the	team	as	the	HPTE	Major	Projects	Manager,	
noting	he	has	direct	experience	with	the	US	36	and	Central	70	projects.	He	said	HPTE	Budget	Analyst	Pat	
Saffo	is	retiring	from	CDOT	after	21	years	of	service.	The	Board	members	thanked	her	for	her	
contributions,	and	welcomed	Mr.	Meneghetti.	
	
Director	Spector	briefed	the	Board	on	the	progress	for	strategic	action	items	identified	at	the	April	2016	
planning	retreat.	He	noted	most	have	been	accomplished.	Recent	activity	includes	filling	new	staff	
positions	and	assessment	of	HPTE’s	debt	map.	Yet	to	be	completed	is	the	update	of	HPTE’s	unsolicited	
proposal	guidelines	and	implementation.	
	
HPTE	Budget	Analyst	Piper	Frode	introduced	the	two	budget	items	on	the	February	agenda.	One	action	
item	related	to	the	Third	Budget	Amendment	to	the	current	FY	2017-18	budget	and	an	informational	
only	item	for	discussion	related	to	the	finalized	FY	2018-19	budget.	The	budget	amendment	adds	line	
items	for	a	new	margin	rate	payment	and	also	authorizes	staff	to	use	of	I-25	North	Segment	2	revenues	
to	pay	off	debt	for	tolling	equipment	and	software	incurred	under	the	Master	Installment	Purchase	
Agreement.		For	the	FY	2018-19	budget,	Ms.	Frode	highlighted	changes	made	to	the	draft	budget	for	
Fund	536	which	reflect	an	adjustment	for	toll	projections,	so	they	are	more	in	line	with	historical	and	
actual	data.	Changes	highlighted	for	Fund	537	were	that	there	is	no	increase	in	the	fee	for	service	
request	and	that	the	budget	has	been	broken	into	subcategories	to	make	the	budget	more	user-friendly,	



	

2	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Board	Break,	
Reconvene	and	Roll	
Call:	
	
Director’s	Report:	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Major	Projects	
Update:	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

and	to	clearly	tie	budget	categories	to	the	type	of	work	being	done.	The	Board	thanked	Ms.	Frode	and	
staff	for	their	efforts.	
	
There	was	Board	discussion	of	the	new	federal	tax	reform,	and	its	impact	on	HPTE’s	outstanding	loans,	
including	the	addition	of	a	monthly	margin	rate	payment.		Director	Khokhryakova	asked	whether	the	
margin	rate	payments	were	mandatory	Director	Spector	said	yes,	that	the	margin	rates	are	mandatory.		
The	loan	agreements	for	both	MEXL	and	I-25	North	Segment	3,	both	with	Bank	of	America	Merrill	Lynch	
(BAML)	contain	provisions	allowing	BAML	to	be	made	whole	in	the	event	there	is	a	change	in	tax	law	
that	negatively	impacts	BAML’s	expected	rate	of	return	on	the	loans.	Staff	is	currently	working	with	DAF	
to	analyze	HPTE’s	debt	and	backstop	exposure;	bond	counsel	will	take	a	detailed	look	at	how	rising	
interest	rates	may	affect	HPTE’s	financing.	
	
HPTE	Director	Spector	updated	the	Board	on	Central	70	recent	news.	The	lawsuit	filed	against	the	
project	by	the	Zeppelin	plaintiffs	was	dismissed	with	prejudice	by	the	US	District	Court.	The	Sierra	Club	
lawsuit	is	still	outstanding	with	its	request	for	preliminary	injunction.	Director	Spector	noted	Angie	
Malpiede	of	the	Northeast	Transportation	Connections	(NETC)	is	here	to	update	the	Board	on	
neighborhood-based	transportation	options	for	the	project	area.	
	
	
The	Board	declined	its	usual	break,	and	moved	onto	the	Regular	Meeting	Agenda.	
	
	
	
HPTE	Director	Spector	said	staff	is	heavily	engaged	with	strategic	planning	work	and	Express	Lanes	
outreach.	HPTE	is	watching	community	activity	around	the	proposed	redesign	of	the	Colfax	and	Federal	
clover	interchange,	with	the	local	neighborhoods	and	business	improvement	district	working	together.	
He	noted	this	project	is	not	ready	for	action,	but	is	of	long-range	interest.	Recently	the	Oklahoma	DOT	
and	Turnpike	Authority	and	an	industry	group	from	Tel	Aviv	visited	to	share	best	practices	and	
experiences	and	learn	from	HPTE.	Mr.	Spector	noted	these	visits	are	significant	indicators	of	
international	interest	in	HPTE.	He	also	reported	that	he	recently	met	with	HPTE	Board	Directors	Scott	
and	Marostica	and	special	district	experts	regarding	large-scale	alternative	financial	investment	
strategies.	
	
HPTE	Operations	Manager	Nick	Farber	spoke	about	the	recent	fatality	on	the	I-25	Central	Express	Lanes.	
A	committee	has	been	formed	to	identify	a	range	of	safety	options	for	the	on-ramp	at	70th	Ave.,	which	
contributed	to	the	crash.		
	
He	reported	that	staff	met	with	Clear	Creek	County	stakeholders,	who	are	requesting	additional	
enforcement	of	posted	speed	limits	along	the	I-70	Mountain	Corridor.	Radar	fixed	signs,	roaming	police	
enforcement,	and	variable	speed	limits	are	options	under	consideration.	Mr.	Farber	said	he	would	
return	next	month	with	an	update.	He	also	made	a	presentation	to	the	PPACG	Citizens	Advisory	
Committee	recently	about	what	Express	Lanes	are	and	how	they	work.	HPTE	Board	Director	Scott	said	a	
broader	message	than	basic	facts	needs	to	be	heard	by	citizens.	A	campaign	that	sells	benefits	(rather	
than	features)	to	the	consumer	may	be	required.		
	
Mr.	Farber	reported	that	crashes	and	traffic	violations	on	US	36	have	decreased	by	33%	since	this	past	
summer.	Increased	safety	enforcement	along	the	US	36	Express	Lane	corridor	began	in	July	2017.	A	road	
safety	audit	for	incidents	and	usage	on	I-25	North	will	be	concluded	and	made	available	later	this	spring.	
He	said	early	safety	mitigations	will	likely	include	expanding	exit	gores	for	enforcement	and	pullover	
refuge,	improved	signage	and	possibly	pace	car	enforcement.	
	
	
	
	
	



	

3	
	

	

Communications		
Update:	
	
	
NETC	Report:	
	
	
	
	
	
FY	2017	Audited	
Financial	
Statements:	
	
	
Public	Comment:	
	
Consent	Agenda:	
Resolution	#258	
Approving	January	
17th	Minutes	
	
Resolution	#259	
Approving	3rd	
Amendment	to	
FY17-18	Budget:	
	
Adjourn:	

HPTE	Communications	Manager	Megan	Castle	described	the	series	of	focus	groups	HPTE	will	be	hosting	
later	this	month.		
	
	
Angie	Malpiede,	Executive	Director	of	Northeast	Transportation	Connections	(NETC),	gave	the	first	
update	on	transportation	management	in	the	communities	near	Central	70.	She	introduced	a	progress	
report	video,	showing	neighborhood	engagement	in	alternative	transportation	options	to	serve	daily	
needs.	She	and	her	team	are	developing	trusted	relationships	with	area	businesses	and	residents,	who	
are	now	beginning	to	approach	NETC	to	find	transportation	connections	for	themselves.	The	Board	
commended	NETC	for	their	understanding	of	the	community	needs	and	work	to	date.		
	
	
	
HPTE	Accounting	Manager	Kay	Hruska	presented	the	FY	2017	Audited	Financial	Statements	to	the	
Board.	She	said	the	Audit	report	is	final	and	has	been	released	by	the	Legislative	Audit	Committee.	The	
report	had	no	findings	despite	numerous	complex	transactions	this	year.	The	Board	thanked	Ms.	Hruska	
for	a	good	report.	
	
HPTE	Board	Chair	Marostica	asked	members	of	the	public	to	come	forward	to	speak.	There	were	none.	
	
Upon	a	motion	by	Board	Director	Khokhryakova	and	second	by	Board	Director	Gilliland,	the	Consent	
Agenda	was	approved	unanimously.	
	
	
	
HPTE	Budget	Analyst	Piper	Frode	asked	the	Board	to	review	the	proposed	changes	to	the	Fund	536	
budget	and	approve	Resolution	#259,	authorizing	the	Third	Budget	Amendment	of	FY	2017-18.	Upon	a	
motion	by	Board	Director	Khokhryakova	and	second	by	Board	Director	Scott,	Resolution	#259	was	
approved	unanimously.	
	
The	Board	of	Directors	adjourned	at	1:01	pm.	
	
	



	

	
	
	
	
	
	
TO:  HIGH PERFORMANCE TRANSPORTATION ENTERPRISE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:   DAVID SPECTOR, DIRECTOR, HIGH PERFORMANCE TRANSPORTATION ENTERPRISE 
DATE:  MARCH 14, 2018 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 SCOPE OF WORK/FEE FOR SERVICE INTRA-AGENCY 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN HPTE AND CDOT 
 
 
 
Purpose: 
To present the HPTE Board of Directors with the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 Fee for Service Intra-Agency Agreement 
(IAA), including the FY 2018-19 Scope of Work (SOW), between the High Performance Transportation Enterprise 
and the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT).  
 
Requested Action: 
HPTE staff is seeking Board approval of Resolution #261 authorizing the IAA and proposed SOW between HTPE and 
CDOT for FY 2018-19. 
 
Background: 
In recognition of the specialized nature of the expertise and services HTPE provides to CDOT, CDOT pays HPTE 
through a fee for service IAA. This IAA documents the terms of the overall business relationship between CDOT and 
HPTE. It includes the scope of work CDOT wishes HPTE to provide in FY 2018-19, the value being compensated for 
key areas of work and the process by which HPTE charges CDOT for the fair market value of the services HPTE 
provides to CDOT. The value of services provided must correspond with the HTPE fee for service budget that the 
Transportation Commission (TC) will be asked to approve in March 2018.  
 
Overview of the Fiscal Year 2018-19 CDOT-HTPE Scope of Work: 
Under the FY 2018-19 IAA and Scope of Work HTPE will: 
 

• Lead the Express Lanes Master Plan development process. The ELMP will serve as a comprehensive long-
term strategic road map for the prioritization, planning and development of future express lane projects.   
 

• Provide Central 70 Traffic Demand Management (TDM) services for residents, businesses and commuters in 
order to reduce travel demand along the I-70 corridor during construction of the Central 70 Project. 
 

• Oversee all toll operations and services for Express Lanes in operation including I-25 North US36 to 120th 
(Segment II) and the I-70 Mountain Express Lanes (MEXL). 

 
• Lead the development and implementation of tolling strategies on Express Lane corridors projects 

currently under construction and development including I-25 North 120th to E-470/Northwest Parkway 
(Segment III), C-470 and Central 70. 

 
• Explore innovative financing options for projects in development, such as the I-25 South “Gap” project 

and provide strategic advising for potential future P3 projects. 
 

• Partner with CDOT to assess the financial feasibility of rapid speed technologies, researching innovative 
finance affordable housing alternatives in hard-to-fill maintenance areas, finalizing the parking study and 
performing a multi-jurisdictional transportation financing feasibility analysis.  

 
More details can be found in the FY 2018-19 Scope of Work included as Exhibit A to Attachment B.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



	
	
	

Key Policy Considerations: 
• The fee for service model describes the business relationship between HPTE and CDOT and enables HPTE 

to recoup the fair market value of its services to CDOT in an exchange transaction.  
• The fee for service TABOR enterprise model has been validated by the Colorado Attorney General’s Office 

in a legal opinion discussing the hospital provider fee.  
• Documents the necessary contractual obligations between CDOT and HTPE 
• Approval of the IAA will reinforce the mutually beneficial partnership between CDOT and HTPE and fairly 

compensates HPTE for the value it provides to CDOT.  

Board Options and Recommendations  
1. Review and approve the FY 2018-19 scope of work and IAA via Resolution #261- STAFF 

RECOMMENDATION. 
 

2. Review the scope of work and IAA, but with suggestions to add scope for particular projects or 
programs. Staff would take the proposed changes to CDOT and if additional activities and 
corresponding budget were approved, staff would make the necessary revisions and return with a 
revised scope for Board review and increased budget via a Transportation Commission budget 
supplement at the beginning of the next fiscal year.  

 
3. Review the scope of work and IAA, but with suggestions to reduce scope for particular projects or 

programs. Staff would take the proposed changes to CDOT and if the changes were approved, 
staff would make the necessary revisions and return with a revised scope for Board review and 
revised budget at the beginning of the next fiscal year. 

 
Next Steps  

• HPTE budget staff will coordinate with the Office of Financial Management and Budget (OFMB) to ensure 
that the approved FY 2018-19 fee for service amount is distributed appropriately and available for use at 
the beginning of the fiscal year. 
 

• HPTE program staff will provide a mid-year update to the CDOT and the Transportation Commission on 
the progress being made to complete the activities outlined in the approved FY 2018-19 SOW. 

Attachments: 
Attachment A: Resolution #261 Approving the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Fee for Service Intra-Agency Agreement between 
CDOT and HPTE  
Attachment B: Fiscal Year 2018-19 Fee for Service Intra-Agency Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

Attachment A 

Resolution HPTE # 261 
Approving the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Fee for Service Intra-Agency 
Agreement between HPTE and CDOT 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 43-4-806, et seq., C.R.S., the Colorado High 
Performance Transportation Enterprise (“HPTE”) was created as a government-
owned business within the Colorado Department of Transportation (“CDOT”) to 
pursue innovative means of more efficiently financing important surface 
transportation projects that will improve the safety, capacity, and accessibility 
of the surface transportation system; and 
 
WHEREAS, HPTE is empowered, pursuant to Section 43-4-806(6)(h), C.R.S., to 
make and enter into all other contracts and agreements that are necessary or 
incidental to the exercise of its powers and performance of its duties; and 
 
WHEREAS, HPTE and CDOT previously entered into prior year Fee for Service 
Intra-Agency Agreements in which CDOT acknowledged that HPTE possesses 
expertise and legal powers unavailable to CDOT, and agreed to compensate 
HPTE for the fair market value of certain services to be provided to CDOT 
during those fiscal years; and 
 
WHEREAS, for the upcoming fiscal year, HPTE has prepared a new scope of 
work describing the services CDOT has requested HPTE to provide CDOT 
during the 2018-19 fiscal year (the “Services”), which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as Exhibit A (the “Scope of Work”) to the Fiscal Year 2018-
19 Fee for Service Intra-Agency Agreement (the “Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, HPTE Board of Directors (the “Board”) has reviewed the Scope of 
Work and finds the compensation amounts set forth to constitute fair and 
reasonable compensation for the specific Services to be provided by HPTE to 
CDOT during the 2018-19 fiscal year as detailed in the Scope of Work; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has also reviewed the Agreement, and by this Resolution 
accepts and confirms the findings and statements contained in the recitals. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board hereby approves the 
Agreement in substantially the form presented and authorizes the HPTE 
Director to execute the Agreement with such changes therein and additions 
thereto, including revisions or modifications to the FY 2018-19 Scope of Work, 
as the HPTE Director may determine to be necessary or appropriate. 
 
Signed as of March 14, 2018 
 
 
 
_______________________________________      
Kari V. Grant, Secretary        
HPTE Board of Directors 



2 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
FISCAL YEAR 2018-19  

FEE FOR SERVICE 
INTRA-AGENCY AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made this ____ day of ___________, 2018 
by and between the STATE OF COLORADO for the use and benefit of the COLORADO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, hereinafter referred to as the “Department” or 
“CDOT,” and the COLORADO HIGH PERFORMANCE TRANSPORTATION 
ENTERPRISE, a government-owned business and a division of CDOT, hereinafter referred to as 
the “Enterprise” or “HPTE.”  CDOT and HPTE are referred to herein individually each as a 
“Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”     

 
RECITALS 

 
A. CDOT is an agency of the State of Colorado authorized pursuant to § 43-1-105, 

C.R.S. to plan, develop, construct, coordinate, and promote an integrated transportation system 
in cooperation with federal, regional, local and other state agencies. 

 
B. Pursuant to § 43-1-110, C.R.S., the executive director of CDOT is authorized to 

execute certain agreements on behalf of CDOT. 
 
C. HPTE was created pursuant to § 43-4-806(2), C.R.S. and operates as a 

government-owned business within CDOT. 
 
D. Pursuant to § 43-4-806(6)(g), C.R.S., HPTE is empowered to enter into contracts 

or agreements with any public entity to facilitate a public-private partnership, including, but not 
limited to, an agreement in which the Enterprise, on behalf of CDOT, provides services in 
connection with a surface transportation infrastructure project. 

 
E. HPTE is further empowered, pursuant to § 43-4-806(6)(h), C.R.S., to make and 

enter into all other contracts and agreements, including intergovernmental agreements under 
§ 29-1-103, C.R.S., that are necessary or incidental to the exercise of its powers and performance 
of its duties.  

 
F. The business purpose of HPTE, as provided for in § 43-4-806(2)(c), C.R.S. is to 

pursue public-private partnerships and other innovative and efficient means of completing 
surface transportation infrastructure projects, which HPTE may agree to complete for CDOT 
under agreements entered into with the Department in accordance with § 43-4-806(6)(f), C.R.S. 

 
G. On September 30, 2013, CDOT and HPTE entered into a Memorandum of 

Understanding, which set forth each Party’s operating roles and responsibilities as they relate to 
their respective missions and provided, in relevant part, that HPTE is to be reimbursed by CDOT 
for personal goods or services procured by HPTE. 

 
H. CDOT acknowledges that HPTE possesses expertise and legal powers unavailable 

to CDOT, which enable it to accelerate the development and delivery of critical surface 
transportation infrastructure projects; and 



3 
 

 
I. CDOT and HPTE previously entered into Fee for Service Intra-Agency 

Agreements, dated September 9, 2015, (the “FY 2015-16 Agreement”), October 14, 2016, as 
subsequently amended on January 12, 2017 (the “FY 2016-17 Agreement”), and June 19, 2017 
(the “FY 2017-18 Agreement”), as subsequently amended on October 27, 2017 in which CDOT 
agreed to compensate HPTE for the fair market value of certain services to be provided to CDOT 
during those fiscal years. 

 
J. The Parties agree and acknowledge that the Services to be provided by HPTE to 

CDOT (for purposes of this recital, as such term was defined in the FY 2016-17 Agreement and 
subsequently modified by mutual agreement of the Parties over the course of the fiscal year) are 
anticipated to be provided in their entirety prior to the conclusion of the fiscal year, with such 
satisfactory completion to be documented in the final progress report to be submitted no later 
than July 15, 2018. 

 
K. HPTE has prepared a new scope of work describing the services CDOT has 

requested HPTE to provide CDOT during the 2018-19 fiscal year (the “Services”), which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A (the “Scope of Work”). 

 
L. In order to further the efficient completion of surface transportation infrastructure 

projects necessary to CDOT’s development of an integrated transportation system, CDOT 
desires that HPTE utilize its expertise and legal powers to provide the Services, in exchange for 
which CDOT agrees to compensate HPTE in the amounts set forth in the Scope of Work. 

 
M. HPTE shall continue to be an enterprise for purposes of Section 20 of Article X of 

the Colorado Constitution (“TABOR”), so long as it receives less than ten percent (10%) of its 
total revenues in grants from all Colorado state and local governments combined. 

 
N. Pursuant to §§ 24-77-102(7)(b) and 43-4-803(13)(b), C.R.S., grants do not 

include revenues or income derived from any authorized rate, fee, assessment, or other charge 
imposed by an enterprise for the provision of goods or services by such enterprise. 

 
O. On March 11, 1997, in Opinion No. 97-01, the Colorado Attorney General also 

concluded, inter alia, that a designated enterprise may continue to qualify as an enterprise under 
TABOR, even though it receives a direct appropriation of monies, so long as the appropriation 
constitutes revenues resulting from the provision of goods or services pursuant to § 24-77-
102(7)(b)(II), C.R.S. 

 
P. Citing Nicholl v. E-470 Public Highway Authority, 896 P.2d 859 (Colo. 1995), the 

Colorado Attorney General further noted that the very concept of an enterprise under TABOR 
envisions an entity that is owned by a government institution, but is financially distinct from it, 
and also, that the financial affairs of the enterprise must be those of a self-supporting business-
like activity that provides goods and services for a fee. 

 
Q. On February 29, 2016, in Opinion 16-01, the Colorado Attorney General also 

concluded, inter alia, that an enterprise must charge a fee in exchange for a government service, 
and a fee for service arrangement – broadly construed – is nearly synonymous with enterprise 
status; 



4 
 

 
R. HPTE engaged Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated to prepare an analysis 

of the market value of the services HPTE could provide to CDOT, based on a review of costs 
incurred by comparable agencies for similar services (the “Stifel Report”); and 

 
S. The Stifel Report concluded that HPTE provides the necessary benefit to CDOT 

for CDOT to support compensation for the Services as contemplated in this Agreement;  
 
T. Based on the findings of the Stifel Report and their own examinations of the 

benefit CDOT receives for HPTE’s services, the Parties find and agree that the amounts CDOT 
intends to compensate HPTE for fiscal year 2019, as set forth in the Scope of Work, are 
reasonable and represent the fair market value of the specific Services to be provided.  

 
U. CDOT and HPTE each hereby affirm that, consistent with Colorado law, moneys 

paid by CDOT to HPTE under this Agreement are not grants of money from CDOT to HPTE, 
but rather, payment for the Services to be provided by HPTE to CDOT as more particularly set 
forth in the Scope of Work. 

 
V. Both CDOT and HPTE are authorized under law to execute this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING RECITALS, 

THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Scope of Work and Responsibilities.   
 

a. HPTE shall provide the Services set forth in Exhibit A over a one year 
period, commencing on July 1, 2018, and ending on June 30, 2019, which comprises the 
2018-19 fiscal year.   

 
b. No later than January 15th and July 15th of the fiscal year, HPTE shall 

submit to CDOT a progress report.  The progress report is to include a narrative summary 
of HPTE’s activities during the previous six months, as well as a detailed report on the 
progress being made in the performance of the Services. The submissions of the semi-
annual reports will be used by HPTE and CDOT to recognize revenue and expenses, 
respectively, and are to be tied to the specific tasks, and categories of work within each 
task, described in the Scope of Work.   

 
c. The Parties may agree to modify the specific tasks set forth in the Scope of 

Work to be undertaken by HPTE during the term of this Agreement, provided that such 
modifications do not result in an increase or decrease in the overall estimated value of the 
Services to be provided under this Agreement.  Any such modifications shall be 
specifically identified, and their estimated values reconciled, in the progress report 
submitted by HPTE on July 15th following the close of the prior fiscal year.  Any 
modifications to the Scope of Work resulting in an increase or decrease in the overall 
estimated value of the Services shall not be undertaken unless agreed to in writing by the 
Parties in an amendment to this Agreement. 

 
2. Payment Amount and Procedures.   

 



5 
 

a. The Parties agree that on July 1, 2018, CDOT shall provide payment in the 
amount of Five Million One Hundred Ninety Four Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 
($5,194,500) to HPTE for the provision of the Services in fiscal year 2018-19 under this 
Agreement (the “Payment Amount”).   

 
HPTE intends to record the full Payment Amount as deferred revenue, and 

recognize revenue on a pro-rata basis as Services are performed during the course of the 
fiscal year.  HPTE will conduct a “true-up” of balances at both mid-year and at the end of 
the fiscal year, to coincide with the Services actually provided, in conjunction with the 
preparation and submittal of the progress reports described in Section 1. 

 
b. The Services to be provided, and the Payment Amount therefor, are for the 

full fiscal year covered by this Agreement, as may be amended from time to time.  
Milestone deadlines contained in the Scope of Work are for informational and work 
progress tracking purposes only and are not binding on HPTE.  Services provided by 
HPTE within the fiscal year shall be compensated as part of the Payment Amount 
provided for herein.  No deductions shall be made for Services completed outside the 
timeframes set forth in the Scope of Work, provided such Services are completed within 
the current fiscal year. 

 
c. Any Services not completed within the term of this Agreement shall be 

reflected in the progress report submitted by HPTE on July 15th following the close of 
the prior fiscal year.  In the event the value of the Services actually completed during the 
fiscal year is less than was estimated in the Scope of Work, HPTE may be required to 
reimburse CDOT for the value of Services not completed.  The value of the uncompleted 
portion of the Services, if any, shall reflect the fair market value of the same, and shall be 
mutually agreed upon and set forth in writing by the Parties in an amendment to this 
Agreement. 
 
3. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2018, through June 30, 

2019, unless the Parties mutually agree in writing to an earlier termination.   
 
4. Amendment; Renewal.   

 
a. It is expressly contemplated that the Parties intend to extend this 

Agreement for additional one-year terms for services to be provided by HPTE to CDOT 
in future fiscal years.  Such extensions shall be documented by formal written 
amendment, and shall include an updated scope of the services to be provided in the 
subsequent fiscal years. 

 
b. HPTE agrees to provide CDOT a proposed draft scope of services for the 

following fiscal year no later than November 2018. 
 

c. If the scope of services and payment amount for the following fiscal year 
are deemed acceptable by CDOT, the same shall be set forth in a written amendment 
executed and approved by the Parties.   
 

d. If during its budget approval process for the following fiscal year, the 
Transportation Commission allocates funds for HPTE in the full amount included in the 



6 
 

proposed scope of services submitted by HPTE, such proposed scope of services shall be 
deemed approved by CDOT, notwithstanding any failure of the Parties to execute a 
written amendment prior to the July 1 start of the subsequent fiscal year.  The Parties 
shall thereafter execute a written amendment for such subsequent fiscal year, the terms 
and conditions of which shall not be inconsistent with the budget action taken by the 
Transportation Commission.   

 
e. If the scope of services and payment amount to be provided by HPTE are 

approved by CDOT as provided for in this Section 4, CDOT agrees that it shall pay 
HPTE the agreed upon payment amount for the following fiscal year on July 1, which 
date represents the first day of the fiscal year in which the proposed services are 
anticipated to be provided. 

 
f. If the Parties are unable to agree upon a scope of services and payment 

amount for the following fiscal year prior to June 30 of any year, this Agreement shall 
terminate and be of no further force and effect for the subsequent fiscal year.   
 
5. Availability of Funds.  Payment pursuant to this agreement is subject to and 

contingent upon the continuing availability of funds appropriated for the purposes   hereof.   
If   any   of   said   funds   become   unavailable, as determined by CDOT, either Party may 
immediately terminate or seek to amend this agreement. 

 
6. Record Keeping Requirements.  HPTE shall maintain a complete file of all 

books, records, papers, accounting records, and other documents pertaining to its execution 
of the Scope of Work under this Agreement, and shall make such materials available to 
CDOT upon request for a period of three years. 
	

7. Right to Audit.  HPTE shall permit CDOT, the State Auditor and/or their 
designee(s) to inspect all records of HPTE and audit all activities which are or have been 
undertaken pursuant to this agreement. 

 
8. Consideration; Exchange Transaction.  The Parties acknowledge that the mutual 

promise and covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, are 
sufficient and adequate to support this Agreement.  The Parties further acknowledge that, for 
accounting purposes, this Agreement represents an exchange transaction for CDOT’s purchase of 
specific services provided by HPTE at the market value of such services. 
 

9. Dispute Resolution.  Any dispute concerning the performance of this 
Agreement shall be referred to the CDOT Chief Engineer and the HPTE Director.  Failing 
resolution by such officers, the dispute shall be submitted in writing by both parties to the 
State Controller, whose decision on the dispute shall be final. 
 

10. Default; Termination.  Any failure of either Party to perform in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement shall constitute a breach of the Agreement. CDOT 
reserves the right to terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to HPTE of its 
nonperformance of the Services; provided, however that HPTE shall not be in default under this 
Agreement if it has promptly commenced a cure of such nonperformance and is diligently 
pursuing the same.  Any finding of nonperformance and failure to cure under this Section shall 
be referred for dispute resolution as provided for in Section 9 prior to any termination becoming 



7 
 

effective.  In the event of termination, including voluntary termination by the Parties under 
Section 3, HPTE shall be required to reimburse CDOT for the value of the Services not yet 
completed as of the date of termination.   

 
11. Delegation.  Except as identified or otherwise implied in the Scope of Work, 

the duties and obligations of HPTE with respect to the provision of the Services under this 
Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated or subcontracted without the prior consent of 
CDOT.  All subcontractors will be subject to the requirements of this Agreement.   
 

12. Modification.  This Agreement is subject to such modifications as may be 
required by changes in federal or state law, or their implementing regulations. Any such required 
modification shall automatically be incorporated into and be part of this Agreement on the 
effective date of such change as if fully set forth herein. 

 
13. Severability.  To the extent that this Agreement may be executed and performance 

of the obligations of the Parties may be accomplished within the intent of the Agreement, the 
terms of this Agreement are severable, and should any term or provision hereof be declared 
invalid or become inoperative for  any  reason,  such  invalidity  or failure  shall  not  affect  the  
validity  of  any  other term  or provision hereof.   

 
14. Waiver.  The waiver of any breach of a term, provision, or requirement of this 

Agreement shall not be construed or deemed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of such term, 
provision, or requirement, or of any other term, provision or requirement, or the same term, 
provision or requirement upon subsequent breach.   
 

15. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This  agreement  shall  inure to the benefit  of 
and  be binding  only  upon the Parties  hereto  and their  respective  successors  and assigns. 
No  third  party  beneficiary   rights  or  benefits   of  any  kind  are  expressly   or  impliedly 
provided  herein.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the enforcement of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be 
strictly reserved to CDOT and HPTE.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or allow 
any claim or right of action whatsoever by any other third person.  It is the express intention of 
CDOT and HPTE that any such person or entity, other than CDOT or HPTE, receiving services 
or benefits under this Agreement, shall be deemed an incidental beneficiary only. 
 

16. Entire Understanding.  This Agreement is intended as the complete integration of 
all understandings between the Parties.  No prior or contemporaneous addition, deletion, or other 
amendment hereto shall have any force or affect whatsoever.   Except as otherwise provided in 
this Agreement, no subsequent renewal, addition, deletion, or other amendment hereto shall have 
any force or effect unless embodied in a writing executed and approved by the Parties. 

 
17. Governmental Immunity.  No term or condition of this Agreement shall be 

construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, 
benefits, protections, or other provisions, of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. 
§ 24-10-101 et seq., or   the   Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. §§ 1346(b) and 2671 et 
seq., as applicable now or hereafter amended. 

 
18. Adherence to Laws.  At all times during the performance of this Agreement, 

HPTE shall strictly adhere to all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations that 



8 
 

have been or may hereafter be established, including, but not limited to state and federal laws 
respecting discrimination and unfair employment practices. 
 

19. Legal Authority.  The Parties each warrant that they possess the legal authority to 
enter into this Agreement and that each has taken all actions required by its procedures, by-laws, 
and/or applicable law to exercise that authority, and to lawfully authorize its undersigned 
signatory to execute this Agreement and to bind CDOT or HPTE, as applicable, to its terms.  The 
persons executing this Agreement on behalf of CDOT and HPTE each warrant that they have full 
authorization to execute this Agreement. 

 
20. Notices.  All communications relating to the day-to-day activities for the work 

shall be exchanged between representatives of CDOT and HPTE.  All communication, notices, 
and correspondence shall be addressed to the individuals identified below.  Either Party may, 
from time to time, designate in writing new or substitute representatives. 
 

If to CDOT: 
 
Joshua Laipply, Chief Engineer 
Colorado Department of Transportation 
4201 E. Arkansas Ave. 
Denver, CO 80222 
Email:  joshua.laipply@state.co.us 

If to HPTE: 
 
David Spector, Director 
HPTE 
Colorado Department of Transportation 
4201 E. Arkansas Ave. 
Denver, CO 80222 
Email:  david.spector@state.co.us 

 
21. Controller’s Approval.  This agreement shall not be deemed valid until it has been 

approved by the State Controller or such assistant as he or she may designate. 
 

	
	

[Signature page follows.] 
  



9 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 

day and year first above written. 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  COLORADO HIGH PERFORMANCE 
John W. Hickenlooper, Governor  TRANSPORTATION ENTERPRISE 
 
 
 
By:   By:        
 MICHAEL P. LEWIS DAVID I. SPECTOR 
 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR HPTE DIRECTOR 
 DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION   
 
  
APPROVED: 
 
Cynthia H. Coffman 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 
 
 
 
By:    
  ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 
 
 

ALL CONTRACTS REQUIRE APPROVAL BY THE STATE CONTROLLER 
 

§ 24-30-202, C.R.S. requires the State Controller to approve all State Contracts. 
This Agreement is not valid until signed and dated below by the State Controller or 
delegate of the State of Colorado. 
 

 
STATE CONTROLLER 

Robert Jaros, CPA, MBA, JD 
 
 

By:_________________________________ 
 

Date:_____________________ 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT A  
HPTE Scope of Work for FY 2018-19 

 
(Attached) 

	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	



 
 

 

Colorado	High	Performance	Transportation	Enterprise	Scope	of	Work 

Fiscal	Year	2018-19 

1.	Organizational	Overview 

In	order	to	accelerate	the	development	and	delivery	of	critical	transportation	infrastructure	projects	
through	the	use	of	innovative	financing,	the	Colorado	Department	of	Transportation	(CDOT)	utilizes	the	
expertise	and	legal	power	of	the	High	Performance	Transportation	Enterprise	(HPTE).	In	2009,	the	HPTE	
was	created	under	43-4-806	C.R.S.,	known	as	FASTER,	in	order	to	accelerate	critical	surface	
transportation	infrastructure	projects	throughout	the	state.	To	achieve	this	objective	the	HPTE	was	
given	the	power	to	enter	into	public-private	partnerships,	impose	user	fees	on	surface	transportation	
projects,	issue	revenue	bonds	and	enter	into	private	commercial	loan	agreements.		HPTE	is	also	the	
Colorado	tolling	entity	(the	successor	to	the	Colorado	Tolling	Enterprise),	managing	Colorado’s	network	
of	tolled	Express	Lanes.	By	law,	HPTE	is	required	to	“aggressively”	pursue	innovative	finance	solutions	to	
improving	Colorado’s	surface	transportation	infrastructure. Due	to	Taxpayer	Bill	of	Rights	(TABOR)	
restrictions,	CDOT	cannot	exercise	these	powers.	Although	a	division	of	CDOT,	HPTE	is	an	independent,	
government	owned	business	and	TABOR	enterprise,	which	exempts	it	from	certain	TABOR	restrictions.	
The	powers	given	to	the	HPTE	through	statute	provide	a	direct	benefit	to	CDOT	and	the	traveling	public	
by	accelerating	infrastructure	projects	that	ordinarily	would	not	be	undertaken	due	to	a	constrained	
fiscal	environment. 

HPTE	manages	and	leads	the	development	of	many	surface	transportation	projects.	These	projects	are	
in	key	corridors	around	the	state	that	when	completed,	will	increase	choice,	may	promote	carpooling,	
expand	capacity,	and	assist	with	traffic	demand	management.	By	contracting	with	HPTE	to	perform	
certain	services,	CDOT	is	able	to	relieve	congestion	and	accelerate	surface	transportation	infrastructure	
projects.		
 
2.	Fiscal	Year	Services	to	be	Provided	
For	the	2018-19	fiscal	year,	HPTE	will	oversee	work	in	five	core	areas:	1)	serve	as	the	tolling	entity	(the	
successor	to	the	Colorado	Tolling	Enterprise)	managing	the	network	of	express	lanes	corridors	both	in	
operation	and	under	construction	2)	use	its	statutory	authority	to	manage	current	public	private	
partnerships	(P3)	and	explore	other	future	surface	transportation	related	P3	opportunities;	3)	serve	as	
innovative	think	tank	for	CDOT	by	exploring	the	possibility	of	using	innovative	finance	to	accelerate	
other	needed	projects;	4)	manage	public	outreach	and	communications	work	for	all	express	lanes	
corridors;	and	5)	participate	in	industry	events	such	as	conferences	to	educate,	train	and	facilitate	
innovative	surface	transportation	projects	being	delivered	in	Colorado.	
 

2.1.	Tolling	Operations 

As	the	tolling	entity	at	CDOT,	HPTE	will	manage	day-to-day	operations	for	existing	Express	Lane	corridors	
including	I-25	North	US36	to	120th	(Segment	II)	and	the	I-70	Mountain	Express	Lanes	(MEXL)	as	well	as	
oversee	the	implementation	of	tolling	systems	on	corridors	under	construction.			HPTE	will	work	with	
CDOT	to	set	toll	rates	to	not	only	provide	a	reliable	travel	time	in	the	Express	Lane,	but	to	provide	
congestion	management	in	the	general	purpose	lanes.		To	accomplish	this,	HPTE	will	provide	in-house	
expertise	through	its	Tolling	Services	Specialist	and	Major	Projects	Manager	as	well	as	contract	with	
outside	industry	expertise	for	operations	related	issues	as	need.		Key	tasks	include	overseeing	the	
installation	of	tolling	equipment	and	software,	the	development	of	Standard	Operating	Procedures	
(SOPs),	Traffic	Incident	Management	Plans	(TIMs),	and	analysis	of	toll	rate	adjustment	sensitivity.			



 
 

These	activities	will	require	close	and	ongoing	coordination	with	the	Federal	Highway	Administration	
(FHWA),	E470	Public	Highway	Authority	and	CDOT	regional	staff. 

With	toll	commencement	expected	on	C470	and	I-25	North	120th	to	E-470/Northwest	Parkway	
(Segment	III),	in	the	summer	of	2019,	the	HPTE	Board	will	have	to	approve	toll	rate	schedules	during	the	
FY	2018-19	timeframe.		HPTE	will	work	also	with	CDOT	to	set	toll	rates	to	not	only	provide	a	reliable	
travel	time	in	the	Express	Lane,	but	also	provide	congestion	management	in	the	general	purpose	lanes.	
The	HPTE’s	Transparency	Policy	suggests	staff	bring	a	draft	toll	rate	schedule	to	the	Board	three	months	
prior	to	tolling	commencement.	HPTE	will	work	with	CDOT,	our	tolling	advisory	consultant,	and	financial	
advisors	to	develop	a	tolling	strategy	for	both	corridors. 

Under	the	loans	for	I-25	North	Segment	3	and	the	Mountain	Express	Lane,	HPTE	has	covenants	it	must	
comply	with.	HPTE	will	use	in-house	expertise,	financial	and	legal	advisors	(the	Attorney	General’s	office	
and	other	contract	attorneys)	to	ensure	we	stay	in	compliance. 

Total	Budget	for	Tolling	Operations:	$761,730 

	 2.2	Public-Private	Partnerships 

As	P3	authority	and	contracting	entity	within	the	Department,	HPTE	will	continue	to	oversee	and	
manage	the	concession	agreements	for	US36	and	Central	70	Project.	Key	tasks	for	US36	will	include:	
working	with	Region	1	maintenance	staff	and	the	CDOT	budget	team	to	develop	the	annual	budget	
request	for	routine	maintenance	and	snow	and	ice	removal	costs	on	corridor	by	September	15,	2018	as	
required	by	the	US	36	CDOT/HPTE	Intra-Agency	Agreement	(IAA),	providing	oversight	of	the	contract	as	
well	as	working	closely	with	Plenary	Roads	Denver	(PRD)	and	CDOT	Region	1	to	address	any	operational	
issues.	Key	tasks	on	the	Central	70	Project	will	include:	guiding	the	litigation	strategy	on	the	Sierra	Club	
lawsuit,	working	with	the	Project	on	setting	up	an	oversight	framework	for	the	developer	on	the	
corridor	and	funding	transportation	demand	management	services	for	residents,	businesses,	and	
commuters	to	reduce	travel	demand	along	the	corridor	during	construction.	On	an	ongoing	basis,	HPTE	
will	continue	to	provide	in-house	expertise	on	necessary	corridor	development	work	and	general	
advising	on	ongoing	and	future	P3	project	development,	which	includes	costs	for	on-call	P3	financial	
advising.	On	both	US	36	and	Central	70,	HPTE	will	coordinate	with	CDOT	Region	1	staff	and	CDOT’s	
Communications	Office	on	all	stakeholder	outreach	efforts.	

Total	Budget	for	Public-Private	Partnerships:	$1,525,770 

2.3	Innovative	Finance	and	Project	Development 

On	non-P3	Express	Lane	corridors	that	have	been	financed	and	are	still	under	construction,	(C470	and	I-
25	North	120th	to	E-470/Northwest	Parkway	(Segment	III)),	HPTE’s	Major	Projects	Manager	will	
continue	to	monitor	construction	progress	to	ensure	schedules	communicated	to	lenders	remain	
accurate.	HPTE	will	also	provide	input	on	any	material	change	orders,	including	changes	to	the	project	
schedule,	changes	affecting	lenders,	changes	that	have	the	potential	to	affect	revenue	generation,	affect	
tolling	on	the	corridor,	or	are	above	10	percent	of	the	total	cost	of	the	project. 

HPTE	will	oversee	the	disbursements	process	on	the	C470	TIFIA	Loan	starting	in	July	2018.	The	process	
for	disbursement	includes	coordinating	proper	documentation	with	the	Project	staff,	the	Region,	and	
the	FHWA	Division	Office.		Disbursements	will	continue	throughout	the	fiscal	year	and	HPTE	will	also	
work	closely	with	the	C470	Project	team	to	ensure	the	monthly	construction	progress	report	are	filed	
with	TIFIA	and	the	bondholders	on	the	last	business	day	of	the	month	as	per	required	in	the	TIFIA	loan	
and	bond	indenture.	The	C470	TIFIA	Loan	requires	that	we	maintain	an	investment	grade	rating	on	the	
loan	and	the	bonds.	This	requires	yearly	surveillance	by	the	rating	agencies	(Fitch	and	DBRS)	and	HPTE	
will	ensure	that	the	surveillance	process	is	completed. 



 
 

HPTE	has	covenants	it	must	comply	with	under	the	loans	for	I-25	North	120th	to	E-470/Northwest	
Parkway	(Segment	III)	and	the	I-70	Mountain	Express	Lane.	HPTE	will	use	in-house	expertise,	financial	
and	legal	advisors	(the	Attorney	General’s	office	and	other	contract	attorneys)	to	ensure	HPTE	and	CDOT	
stay	in	compliance.	On	the	I-25	North	Johnstown	to	Ft.	Collins	project,	HPTE	will	begin	to	develop	plans	
to	engage	with	lenders	to	finance	a	portion	of	that	project.	 

The	Express	Lanes	Master	Plan	will	continue	to	examine	the	development	of	express	lane	related	
projects	to	efficiently	deliver	the	overall	statewide	program	based	on:	1)	mobility;	2)	system	
connectivity;	3)	financial	planning;	4)	revenue	generation;	5)	coordination	with	the	Region	and	
stakeholders;	and	6)	public	input.		Key	tasks	for	the	Express	Lanes	Master	Plan	will	include:	managing	
the	consultant’s	work	and	ensuring	deliverables	are	met,	managing	the	working	groups,	and	overseeing	
the	technical	advisors	providing	oversight	of	the	study’s	outputs. 

HPTE	will	continue	to	provide	strategic	advisory	work,	including	with	the	RoadX	program	and	assessing	
financial	feasibility	of	rapid	speed	technologies,	researching	innovative	finance	of	affordable	housing	
alternatives	in	hard	to	fill	maintenance	areas,	finalizing	the	parking	study	with	the	Division	of	Transit	and	
Rail,	performing	a	multi-jurisdictional	transportation	financing	analysis	and	providing	critical	document	
management	services	for	large	P3	and	innovative	finance	projects.	 

Total	Budget	for	Innovative	Finance	and	Project	Development:	$2,429,000 

2.4	Public	Outreach	and	Communications 

To	ensure	comprehensive	public	outreach	and	education	for	Express	Lanes,	Public-Private	Partnerships	
(P3)	projects	including	US36	and	Central	70,	and	to	comply	with	the	US	36	Legislative	Audit,	CDOT	tasks	
HPTE	with	the	following	key	areas	of	work: 

• Conduct	telephone	town	halls	as	required	by	the	Transparency	Policy 
• Conduct	surveys	to	gauge	public	sentiment	and	attitude	towards	Express	Lanes 
• Conduct	public	meetings	and	stakeholder	outreach	as	required	by	the	Transparency	Policy 
• Maintain	current	and	updated	information	on	project	websites	regarding	project	status	and	

public	participation	activities	and	events. 
• Produce	Annual	Report	to	Colorado	General	Assembly	as	required	by	43-4-806	C.R.S. 
• Coordinate	with	the	CDOT	Public	Information	Office	on	updating	transponder	and	HOV	policy,	

motorcycle	transponder	policy,	and	HOV	carpooling	technology. 
• Conduct	ongoing	outreach	for	Express	Lanes 
• Conduct	training	for	internal	staff	and	for	local	stakeholders	 
• Conduct	legislative	outreach	 

Total	Budget	for	Public	Outreach	and	Communications:	$460,000 

2.5	Out	of	State	Travel	
 

To	comply	with	the	training	requirement	from	the	US	36	Legislative	Audit	and	to	promote	HPTE’s	
projects	to	the	infrastructure	finance	industry,	HPTE	will	travel	to	conferences,	trainings,	and	project	
related	meetings.	The	Out	of	State	Travel	(OOST)	plan	is	approved	annually	as	part	of	HPTE	budget	and	
any	changes	to	OOST	will	be	discussed	with	CDOT.	Please	see	Exhibit	A	for	a	full	list	of	out	of	state	travel	
that	HPTE	is	contemplating	starting	on	July	1,	2018.	
	
Total	Budget	for	Out	of	State	Travel:	$18,000 

	

	



 
 

3.	Terms	and	Conditions 

3.1	Scope	of	Work	Duration 

This	scope	of	work	documents	the	duties	and	tasks	that	CDOT	directs	the	HPTE	to	manage,	oversee,	and	
implement	for	fiscal	year	2018-19.	This	scope	of	work	outlines	services	that	will	be	provided	by	HPTE	
over	a	one-year	period	that	will	commence	on	July	1,	2018	and	end	on	June	30,	2019.	 

3.2	Payment	for	Services	 

Associated	costs	for	specific	areas	of	work	are	outlined	below.	In	exchange	for	completing	the	tasks	
outlined	under	this	scope	of	work,	CDOT	will	compensate	HPTE	with	an	upfront	payment	for	its	services.	
In	order	to	receive	pre-payment	for	services,	HPTE	will	submit	an	invoice	to	CDOT	at	the	beginning	of	
each	fiscal	year	on	July	1st.	 

3.3	Progress	Reporting	 

On	the	15th	of	January	and	July	of	each	fiscal	year,	HPTE	will	submit	a	progress	report	that	includes	a	
summary	of	its	activities	for	the	previous	six	months	as	well	as	a	status	report	on	the	progress	being	
made	to	accomplish	the	tasks	outlined	in	this	scope	of	work.	The	submission	of	the	semi-annual	reports	
will	be	used	by	HPTE	and	CDOT	to	recognize	revenue	and	expenses,	respectively. 

	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
EXHIBIT	A:	FY	2018-19	O

ut	of	State	Travel	Plan	



	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
TO:  HIGH PERFORMANCE TRANSPORTATION ENTERPRISE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:   PIPER FRODE, ENTERPISES BUDGET & POLICY ANALYST 
DATE:  MARCH 14, 2018 
SUBJECT:  ADOPTION OF FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 BUDGETS FOR FUND 536 AND 537 
 
 
 
Purpose: 
To present the HPTE Board of Directors (the Board) with final Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 budgets for Fund 536 
(Statewide Transportation Enterprise Special Revenue Fund) and Fund 537 (Statewide Transportation Enterprise 
Operating Fund).  
 
Requested Action: 
Staff is requesting Board approval of Resolution #262 adopting final FY 2018-19 budgets for HPTE. 
 
Policy Implications: 
Approval of final budgets this month by the Board: 

• Ensures that HPTE is in alignment with its new annual budget timeline 
• Allows HPTE budget staff time to coordinate with the office of Financial Management (OFMB) and assure 

that HPTE’s approved FY 2018-19 budgets are distributed in an accurate and timely manner.  
 
Background and Details:   
In February 2018, staff presented the Board with final FY 2018-19 budgets for Fund 536 and Fund 537 for review. 
The Board had no comments or suggested changes, therefore no modifications have been made to the budget that 
was presented in February. Details regarding specific revenues and allocations are outlined in the final budgets 
attached as Exhibit A and Exhibit B to Attachment A: Resolution #262 for Approval and Adoption of the Fiscal Year 
2018-19 Budgets for HPTE. 
 
Options and Recommendations 

1. Act on Resolution #262 adopting final FY 2018-19 budgets for Fund 536 and 537-Staff Recommendation 
2. Request additional information or changes to specific line items. 
3. Deny the request. 

 
Next Steps 

• HPTE budget staff will coordinate with the Office of Financial Management and Budget (OFMB) to ensure 
that the approved budget amounts are distributed appropriately. 

• Enterprise budget and accounting staff will provide the Board with a year-end report for FY 2017-18 in 
October following the close of the fiscal year. 

 
Attachments: 
Attachment A: HPTE Resolution #262 Approving and Adopting Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budgets for Fund 536 and Fund 
537 
 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



	

Attachment A: 
 
Resolution –HPTE #262  

Approval and Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budgets for 
Fund 536 and Fund 537 

 
WHEREAS, the Colorado General Assembly created the High Performance 
Transportation Enterprise (HPTE) in C.R.S. 43-4-806 as a government-owned 
business within the Colorado Department of Transportation (“CDOT”) for the 
business purpose of accelerating critical surface transportation infrastructure 
projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 43-4-806(3)(a), C.R.S., created the Statewide 
Transportation Enterprise Special Revenue Fund in the state treasury 
(“Fund 536”) for the purpose of, inter alia, depositing user fee revenues 
received by the HPTE, and further provided for the establishment of 
separate accounts in connection with specific surface transportation 
infrastructure projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 43-4-806(4), C.R.S., separately created the Statewide 
Transportation Enterprise Operating Fund (“Fund 537”) for the HPTE; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 43-4-806(6)(I), C.R.S., the HPTE Board of 
Directors (the “Board”) is empowered to set and adopt, on an annual basis, 
a budget for the HPTE.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the HPTE budgets for Fiscal Year 
2018-19 for Fund 536 and Fund 537, attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
Exhibit B is hereby approved and adopted by the Board. 
 
 
Signed as of March 14, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
Kari V. Grant 
Secretary, HPTE Board of Directors 
 
 
 

 
	
	
	



 

 

 

 

 
 

Line 

Item

 Draft     

Revenues-Nov 

 Draft   

Allocations- Nov 

 Updated 

Revenues-Feb 

 Updated 

Allocations-Feb 

1 US 36 Express Lanes (Cost Center T8620-536)
2 Fiscal Year Revenues

3 Interest Earnings 217,000$             217,000$             

4 Annual Concessionaire Management Fee 400,000$             400,000$             

5 Total US 36 FY 2018-19 Available Revenue 617,000$             617,000$             

6 Fiscal Year Allocations

7 CDOT Staff Consulting (5,000)$                 (5,000)$                 

8 Project Oversight (400,000)$            (400,000)$            

9 Toll Processing Oversight (197,000)$            (197,000)$            

10 Annual Audit (5,000)$                 (5,000)$                 

11 Attorney General Fees (10,000)$              (10,000)$              

12 Miscellaneous Corridor Studies -$                      -$                      

13 Total US 36 FY 2018-19 Allocations (617,000)$            (617,000)$            

14 US36 Remaining Balance -$                      -$                      

15 I-25 North Express Lanes (Cost Center T8630-536)
16 Fiscal Year Revenues

17 Tolling Revenue 10,896,065$        7,565,373$          

18 Transponder Revenue 500,000$             500,000$             

19 Interest Earnings 1,500$                  1,500$                  

20 I-25 North Loan Funds for Debt Service Payment 470,237$             235,119$             

21 Total I-25 N FY 2018-19 Available Revenue & Funds 11,867,802$        8,301,991$          

22 Fiscal Year Allocations

23 I-25 North Loan Payment (470,237)$            (470,237)$            

24 Margin Rate Payment (155,973)$            

25 CDOT Staff Consulting (15,000)$              (15,000)$              

26 Attorney General Fees (5,000)$                 (5,000)$                 

27 General Reimbursable Expenses and Toll Processing Costs (2,330,284)$         (2,250,000)$         

28 Corridor Operations & Maintenance (100,000)$            (100,000)$            

29 Note Registrar (1,000)$                 (1,000)$                 

30 Total I-25 N FY 2018-19 Allocations (2,921,521)$         (2,997,210)$         

31 I-25 N Remaining Balance 8,946,281$          5,304,781$          

32 I-70 West Mountain Express Lane (MEXL)  (Cost Center T8640-536)
33 Fiscal Year Funds and Revenue

34 Tolling Revenue 1,938,285$          2,257,275$          

35 Interest Earnings 1,500$                  1,500$                  

36 MEXL Loan Funds for Debt Service 697,500$             

37 Total I-25 N FY 2018-19 Available Revenue & Funds 1,939,785$          2,956,275$          

38 Fiscal Year Allocations

39 MEXL Loan Payment (697,500)$            (697,500)$            

40 Margin Rate Payment (231,354)$            

41 CDOT Staff Consulting (15,000)$              (15,000)$              

42 Attorney General Fees (1,000)$                 (1,000)$                 

43 General Reimbursable Expenses and Toll Processing Costs (172,264)$            (270,000)$            

44  Corridor Operations & Maintenance (150,000)$            (150,000)$            

45 Note Registrar (1,000)$                 (1,000)$                 

46 Total I-70 W MEXL FY1 2018-19 Allocations (1,036,764)$         (1,365,854)$         

47 I-70 W MEXL Remaining Balance 903,021$             1,590,421$          

48 C-470 Express Lanes (Cost Center T8650-536)
49 Fiscal Year Funds and Revenue

50 C-470 Bond Proceeds for Debt Service 8,089,750$          8,089,750$          

51 Total C-470 FY 2018-19 Available Funds 8,089,750$          8,089,750$          

52 Fiscal Year Allocations

53 Bond Debt Service (8,089,750)$         (8,089,750)$         

54 Total I-70 W MEXL FY1 2018-19 Allocations (8,089,750)$         (8,089,750)$         

55 I-70 W MEXL Remaining Balance -$                      -$                      

Total Fund 536 Revenues & Funds 22,514,337$     19,965,017$     

Total Fund 536 Allocations (12,665,035)$    (13,069,814)$    

Remaining Unbudgeted Funds 9,849,302$       6,895,202$       

Attachment A: Fiscal Year 2018-19 Final Budget for Fund 536

Statewide Transportation Enterprise Special Revenue Fund (C.R.S. 43-4-806(3)(a)) 536

Exhibit A to Resolution #262
(Adopted Fiscal Year 2018-19 536 Budget)

Final

Final
Revenues-March

Final Allocations-
March



 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Line 

Item

 Draft     

Revenues-Nov 

 Draft   

Allocations- Nov 

 Updated 

Revenues-Feb 

 Updated 

Allocations-Feb 

1 Fiscal Year Revenues

2 Fee for Service 5,169,500$          5,169,500$          

3 Interest Earnings 25,000$                25,000$                

4 Total FY 2018-19 Revenue 5,194,500$       5,194,500$       

5 Fiscal Year Allocations

6 Administrative Cost Center (T8700-537)

7

8 Overall Program Operations 

9 HPTE Staff Compensation (1,092,000)$         (1,024,000)$         

10 CDOT Staff (200,000)$            (200,000)$            

11 Board Expenses (15,000)$              (15,000)$              

12 Staff Training and Certifications (45,000)$              (25,000)$              

13 Administrative and Office Needs (12,000)$              (10,000)$              

14 Conferences and Industry Memberships (10,000)$              (10,000)$              

16 Out of State Travel (25,500)$              (25,500)$              

17 Technical Services

18 Program Management -$                      -$                      

19 Express Lanes Communications and Public Affairs Support (460,000)$            (460,000)$            

20 Toll Operations Advisor (200,000)$            (300,000)$            

21 Aconex Document Management System (224,000)$            (224,000)$            

22 Financial Services

23 Accounting Advisors and Annual Audit (21,000)$              (21,000)$              

24 Surveillance and Ratings Fees (150,000)$            (150,000)$            

25 Public Private Partnership (P3) Advisor (300,000)$            (350,000)$            

26 Legal  Services

27 Outside Legal Services (500,000)$            (125,000)$            

28 Attorney General Fees (90,000)$              (50,000)$              

29 Strategic Project Development

30 CDOT Project Support (250,000)$            (455,000)$            

31 Express Lanes Master Plan Development (1,000,000)$         (1,250,000)$         

32 Central 70 Traffic Demand Management (600,000)$            (500,000)$            

33 Miscellaneous -$                      -$                      

34 Total FY 2018-19 Revenue 5,194,500$       5,194,500$       .

35 Total FY 2018-19 Allocations (5,194,500)$      (5,194,500)$      

Total Fund 537 Revenue 5,194,500$       5,194,500$       

Total Fund 537 Allocations (5,194,500)$      (5,194,500)$      

Remaining Unbudgeted Funds -$                 -$                 

Attachment B: Fiscal Year 2018-19 Final Budget for Fund 537

Statewide Transportation Enterprise Operating Fund (C.R.S. 43-4-806(4)) 537

Exhibit B to HPTE Resolution #262
(Adopted Fiscal Year 2018-19 Fund 537 Budget)

Final Revenues-
March

Final Allocations-
March


